

# Global Opportunities LSE

Study Abroad Pre-departure Guide 2025/26

### Contents

Congratulations on your nomination	3
The GO LSE Student Code of Conduct	4
Your responsibilities as a GO LSE study abroad student	5
Summary of key actions	6
Visas and immigration requirements	8
Your health and well-being	9
Insurance	10
Financial matters	11
Accommodation	14
Academic matters	15
Support from LSE whilst you are overseas	16
Returning to LSE	17
Useful links	18



## Congratulations on your nomination

I'm delighted that you have been selected\* by the School to study abroad in 2025/26 – congratulations!

I'm sure you'll enjoy an experience that is both academically and personally rewarding, and the Global Opportunities (GO) LSE team will be supporting you throughout to help ensure this is the case.

Between now and your departure, we will be contacting you with important information and advice that will help you prepare for your time overseas. We have produced this Guide to provide you with an overview of the things you need to consider before, during and after your year abroad.

If, at any time, you have questions about your year abroad please don't hesitate to contact the GO LSE team at <a href="mailto:ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk">ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk</a>

Will Breare-Hall
Deputy Head of Student Recruitment
(International and Study Abroad)



\*Students on Language Centre BSc programmes are required to study abroad. Reference to 'GO LSE' in this Guide includes all students undertaking a period of study abroad.

### The GO LSE Study Abroad Student Code of Conduct

As an LSE student participating in the GO LSE study abroad programme you will be an ambassador for the School. You are required to adhere to the following standards of conduct and behaviour throughout your time studying at the host institution.

- You will conduct yourself in an orderly, responsible, and sober manner at all times, and respect the rights and views of others.
- You will not engage in any act that will, or is likely to, disrupt the teaching, study, research or administrative work of the host institution.
- **3.** You will not cause, or threaten to cause, injury to, or endanger the safety of others.
- 4. You will not engage in dishonest behaviour and/or fraudulent actions, which include submitting incorrect or misleading information to the host institution.
- 5. You will not engage in any form of conduct or communication, including that on social media, that can reasonably be considered to be bullying or harassment.
- **6.** You will not engage in any act that will, or is likely to, damage or deface property.
- 7. You will not cause a health and safety concern, which includes failure to comply with host institution/country guidance.
- 8. You will not engage in any conduct or communication that will, or is likely to, bring either LSE or the host institution into disrepute or unjustifiably harm the reputation of a member of it.

- You will not commit a criminal act, and/or a breach of discipline, which may or may not be punished in a court of law.
- You will not use any of the host institution's facilities improperly and/or breach their conditions of use.
- **11.** You will remain registered at the host institution for the full academic year.
- 12. You will be physically present at the host institution, studying in-person, for the full academic year, unless authorised to do otherwise by LSE.

Failure to comply with any of the above may, at LSE's discretion, lead to immediate cancellation of your place, your withdrawal from the study abroad programme and the forfeiture of any funding you had been awarded.

## Your responsibilities as a GO LSE study abroad student

In addition to adhering to the GO LSE Study Abroad Student Code of Conduct, as a participant in the GO LSE programme we require you to:

- Regularly check your LSE email account before, during and after your period of study abroad and to respond promptly to correspondence from the GO LSE team.
- 2. In the event of a public emergency and/ or serious incident in the locality of your host institution, contact the GO LSE team at <u>ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk</u> within 24 hours to confirm your safety or to request assistance, as may be required.
- **3.** Complete and return all GO LSE feedback surveys promptly.



## Summary of key actions

The following table outlines some of the most important things you should do before departing for your year abroad.

It is not an exhaustive list so please use it as a guide and develop it further as your situation requires.

Action	Date
Ensure your passport is valid for the entirety of your period of study abroad, and renew it if necessary.  (Page 8)	At the earliest opportunity
Familiarise yourself with the visa requirements and application process of your destination country.  (Page 8)	At the earliest opportunity
Research the average cost of living in your host country/city and ensure you will have sufficient funds to support yourself for the full duration of your time studying abroad. (Page 13)	At the earliest opportunity
Create a budget, including extra money for travelling and socialising. (Page 13)	At the earliest opportunity
Ensure that you are fit enough to undertake your period of study abroad. You may wish to arrange a consultation with your GP/doctor.	At the earliest opportunity
Download and complete the Travel Risk Assessment and send it to the LSE Health and Safety team. (Page 9)	At the earliest opportunity
Discuss any disability or special dispensation requirements with your host institution. (Page 9)	At the earliest opportunity

Action	Date
Review both the university and private housing options available to you whilst studying abroad and complete the relevant application process. (Page 14)	At the earliest opportunity
Book your flights after you have secured your visa and received your study abroad travel dates. Retain original copies of all receipts.	As soon as you know your travel dates and have obtained your visa
Secure LSE travel insurance by completing the online Notification of Travel form. (Page 9)	As soon as you know your travel dates
Ensure you'll be able to make international calls from your mobile phone whilst overseas and what the charges will be.	As soon as you know your travel dates
Research suitable insurance policies (as required by your host institution or country) and ensure you arrange cover before you depart. (Page 10)	As soon as you know your travel dates
Research and apply for any additional financial support available to you whilst studying abroad. (Page 13)	Ongoing
Inform the Student Loan Company (SLC) about your study abroad year (if applicable). (Page 18)	May 2025
Attend all in-person/online GO LSE pre departure sessions.	February – June 2025
Review the GO LSE Study Abroad Student Code of Conduct (page 4) in the GO LSE Nomination Acceptance Form and email ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk to confirm your acceptance.	By 30 January 2025
Sign and return the LSE Turing Scheme Grant Agreement, which contains the Turing Scheme Grant Terms and Conditions, when it is emailed to you (if applicable).  (Page 11)	By the given deadline
Inform your credit/debit card provider(s) of the dates you will be living overseas, to avoid your card(s) being blocked.	Approximately a week before departure
Update your UK bank details on LSE's OneFinance Hub to ensure you receive any payment from the Turing Scheme you are eligible for.	By 31 August 2025
Complete your online LSE enrolment.	Within two weeks after the start of your year abroad and no later than 25 October 2025.

## Visas and immigration requirements

#### **Passport**

Ensure that your passport is valid for the entirety of your period of study abroad and for at least six (6) months beyond the anticipated date of your return to London. If it is near its expiry date, apply for a new one well in advance of applying for your visa. During peak times, processing applications for a new/renewed passport may take several weeks.

#### Visas - UK students

Allow plenty of time to organise your visa. Visit the relevant embassy website for your destination country for information on which visa to apply for and the application process. You should also read the relevant pages of your host institution's website.

Ensure that the visa you obtain is appropriate for the duration and purpose of your time in the host country. You should prioritise obtaining your visa, and bear in mind that this may require you to submit your passport with your application.

Immigration legislation can change frequently and without warning, so you must check the relevant embassy and immigration websites for the most up to date information.

Taking the necessary steps to acquire your visa is your own responsibility. The relevant immigration authorities reserve the right to refuse you entry to the country at their discretion. Where there are visa application fees, you will not be eligible for a refund if your visa is denied.

It is advisable not to book flights until you have received both the official offer letter/ admissions confirmation email from your host university and your visa.

#### Visas - overseas students

If you are not from the UK/don't have a British passport you should contact the relevant embassy to determine the correct visa and application process for your period of study abroad. Allow plenty of time to organise your visa.

You should also check whether your UK Student visa status will be affected by your time abroad. Please contact LSE's <u>Student Advice and Engagement Team</u> to discuss this as early as possible.

Immigration legislation can change frequently and without warning, so you must check the relevant embassy and immigration websites for the most up to date information.

Taking the necessary steps to acquire your visa is your own responsibility. The relevant immigration authorities reserve the right to refuse you entry to the country at their discretion. Where there are visa application fees, you will not be eligible for a refund if your visa is denied.

It is advisable not to book flights until you have received both the official offer letter/ admissions confirmation email from your host university and your visa.

## Your health and well-being

#### **Support from LSE**

LSE's Health and Safety team can help you stay safe whilst studying abroad. They require you to complete the School's online Notification of Travel form as soon as you know your travel dates. If required, the Health and Safety team may also request that you complete a travel risk assessment, have it countersigned by a member of the GO LSE team, and then email it to Health.And.Safety@lse.ac.uk

You will not be able to commence your period of study abroad until you have received your LSE travel insurance policy certificate from the Health and Safety team. You are strongly advised to avoid making any financial commitments until you receive written approval.

There are example risk assessments on the Health and Safety team's web pages, but if you need any help just send them an email and they'll be happy to talk you through the risk assessment process.

Both before and during your time studying abroad you should feel free to access the full range of support services available to you at LSE, including (but not limited to) the <u>Disability and Mental Health Service</u>; <u>Faith Centre</u>; <u>LSE LIFE</u>; <u>Student Counselling Service</u>; <u>Students' Union Advice Service</u>, and <u>Student Wellbeing Service</u>.

#### Support at your host institution

If you have a disability and/or are likely to require support or special dispensation with your learning during your year abroad, it is your responsibility to raise and discuss this with your host institution.

Inform them of any special provisions that you receive at LSE and ask if there is any support they can offer. If you would like the GO LSE team to liaise with your host institution regarding your learning and wellbeing support you will need to provide us with written permission to do so.

If you receive financial disability support you should contact the **Disability and Mental Health Service** prior to your departure to help you plan and prepare for your time abroad.

If appropriate, you should inform your health care provider/GP of your plan to study abroad and discuss with them any specific disability/ health and support needs you have, including medication and strategies for managing your health whilst overseas.

Consider the support services you have in place in the UK and identify those you will need whilst you are abroad. Investigate whether they are the same as the ones in the UK and ensure that your health insurance will cover the costs of medical treatment, medication, therapy, or other health related needs.

### **Insurance**

You are eligible to be covered by the School's comprehensive travel insurance policy while you are overseas but you will still be required to take out your own insurance during your period of study abroad.

Research the insurance options available to you and ensure you arrange cover before you depart.

In most instances, your host institution will require you to take out their own health insurance, but this usually only covers you from the moment you arrive at your destination. Additional insurance for your journey will be necessary.

If applicable, it is strongly recommended that you are in possession of either a European Health Insurance Card (EHIC) or a UK Global Health Insurance Card (GHIC). These allow you to receive state healthcare in the European Economic Area (EEA), and some other countries, on the same basis as a resident of that country.

#### Insurance check list

- Ensure that you have adequate insurance cover for emergency medical expenses, personal accident, death and repatriation, cancellation, luggage, personal effects, money, and personal liability. This is especially important if you have any underlying health conditions.
- Check carefully the wording of any personal cover. If you do not there is a risk you will incur significant financial costs and could potentially become stuck in a location without appropriate insurance.
- Confirm any exclusions.



### **Financial matters**



You will pay no tuition fee to your host institution. GO LSE is a reciprocal fee waiver student exchange programme.

You will continue to pay your tuition fees to LSE as follows:

#### Home students

For 'Home' fee status undergraduate students starting their programme between 2019/20 and 2024/25, the fee for the year abroad is £1,385. For 'Home' fee status undergraduates starting in 2025/26 the fee for the abroad year will be £1,430.

#### Overseas students

Where the exchange/study abroad year is not a compulsory part of a Language Centre BSc degree (see below), 'Overseas' fee status undergraduates who started their programme in 2022/23 or earlier will pay a tuition fee of £4,625 during their year abroad. 'Overseas' fee status undergraduates who joined the School in 2023/24 or later will pay the full-time tuition fee of their programme as normal.

#### · Language Centre year abroad

Where the exchange/study abroad year is a compulsory part of a Language Centre BSc degree, the tuition fee payable is detailed in the LSE Fee table and is calculated based on the start year of the programme. For example, 'Overseas' fee status students who started their Language Centre BSc in 2023/24 will pay £3,696 for the year they are abroad (the third year of the programme). This tuition fee is approximately 15% of the 'Overseas' tuition fee in a standard, non-placement year.

If you are in receipt of an LSE Bursary you will continue to receive this during your time studying abroad. However, please note that other LSE scholarships and awards, i.e. the Undergraduate Support Scheme, are not available to students during their time studying abroad.

For more information, please see the **LSE Table** of Fees.

#### **Travel grants**

If you are a UK student, contact <u>Student</u> <u>Finance England</u>, <u>Student Finance Wales</u> or the <u>Student Awards Agency Scotland</u> to check if you are eligible to apply for a travel grant and/ or additional support whilst you are studying abroad. This can include funding for up to three return journeys between your home and your host institution, as well as costs relating to essential travel expenses (including medical insurance and visa applications).

#### The Turing Scheme

Launched in 2021, the **Turing Scheme** is a UK government programme that provides funding to students studying abroad. LSE secured limited funding from the Turing Scheme to support some of those students studying abroad in the academic year 2024-25. The Scheme awards additional funding to students from lower income backgrounds to help make study abroad accessible to everyone.

LSE has submitted a bid for funding in 2025/26, and should know the outcome of this in the summer of 2025. If the School's bid is successful we'll contact you directly with further information about how to apply, the amount you are eligible for, and to obtain your agreement to the <a href="Turing">Turing</a> Scheme Bursary Terms and Conditions.

Note: Turing Scheme bursaries are not guaranteed to any student. Disadvantaged and SEND students eligible for additional funding must provide valid receipts for expenses such as travel, passport, visa, insurance, vaccinations, and SEND-related costs.

More information is available on the LSE Turing Scheme Funding website.

### LSE Turing Scheme Student Bursary Terms and Conditions

- I agree that the bursary awarded to me is to be used exclusively to support my participation in an LSE student placement abroad.
- 2. I will remain registered at LSE for the duration of my study abroad placement. I understand that during the year abroad, I am subject to the rules and regulations of both LSE and the host institution/organisation and that failure to abide by them could result in the immediate termination of my participation in the study abroad programme.
- 3. I will obtain, prior to departure, approval to travel from LSE's Health and Safety team, including confirmation that I am covered by LSE's travel and personal accident insurance for the entire period, until I return to my home country.
- 4. I will regularly check my LSE email account before, during and after the year abroad and will maintain prompt and timely communication with the GO LSE team. In the event of a public emergency and/or serious incident in the locality of my placement I will contact the GO LSE team at ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk within 24 hours to confirm my safety or to request assistance, as may be required.
- 5. I will make my own arrangements for accommodation and travel, and for obtaining any visas as may be necessary. I will also ensure that I have a passport that is valid for a minimum period of six months beyond the end date of my period of study abroad.
- **6.** I agree to abide by the GO LSE Study Abroad Programme Student Code of Conduct.
- 7. I accept that any expenses incurred beyond the value of the bursary awarded to me shall under no circumstances whatsoever be the responsibility of LSE or the host institution.

- 8. I accept that I may be required to repay my bursary to LSE, either in full or in part, should I fail to complete my year abroad, if I fail to adhere to the GO LSE Study Abroad Programme Student Code of Conduct or if I am required to return early as a result of a decision made by LSE or by the host institution. I further accept that any decision about whether to require repayment shall be at the sole discretion of LSE.
- I agree to write a short report about my period of study abroad at the end of my placement.
- 10. I consent to the disclosure by LSE of any personal information about me, including my academic record, if LSE believes the disclosure:
  - would assist any hospital or other medical providers;
  - would assist in satisfying immigration or visa requirements during the student mobility visit or otherwise facilitate my travel;
  - would assist in an emergency situation (as defined by LSE);
  - is required to enable or assist me to obtain funds; and
  - in any other circumstance in which LSE reasonably believes the disclosure of the personal information is warranted.
- 11. I understand that by participating in an LSE study abroad programme, LSE will be required to provide the Turing Scheme administrators with my personal data, which may be passed to other third parties, companies or governmental agencies as required in order to deliver the Turing Scheme. I confirm I have read the privacy policy and am content with it.

#### **BUTEX Scholarships**

BUTEX invites undergraduate students at UK universities to compete for a number of scholarships to support their time studying abroad. The value of each scholarship is £500 and will be paid once you have arrived and registered at your host institution. The next round of applications will open in May 2025. More information, including how to apply, can be found on the BUTEX website.



#### Financial matters check list

- Create a budget, including extra money for travelling and socialising.
- Research the best airfares.
- Investigate the cost of your visa (and passport renewal, if necessary).
- Inform your credit/debit card issuer that you're going away (to avoid your card being blocked whilst you're abroad).
- Check with your bank whether you'll be charged a fee for withdrawing cash overseas.
- Check whether you'll be able to make international calls from your mobile and what the charges will be. If you decide to take your UK mobile phone, ensure you have adequate insurance and call barring above a certain limit, just in case it's lost or stolen.

#### **Cost of living**

Consult <u>www.expatistan.com</u> for cost-of-living comparisons.

### **Accommodation**

Guidance on securing accommodation for the duration of your period studying abroad will be provided by your host institution.

Please regularly visit your host institution's website for any updates relating to information on accommodation.

It is your responsibility to secure suitable accommodation for your study period abroad.

Do not enter into binding agreements before your travel and visa arrangements have been confirmed.

<u>Student.com</u> is the world's leading marketplace for student housing.

Most GO LSE students need to find their own accommodation during their time studying abroad. Whilst our partner institutions usually provide guidance and advice on the process they rarely guarantee housing. One option for GO LSE students seeking a place to stay is to use Student.com . They list more than 1 million beds in over 400 cities worldwide and offer a wide range of rooms in purpose-built student accommodation. These are properties that were built specifically for students and are managed by well known and trusted student accommodation providers.

Their easy-to-use filters let you find a room for your specific needs and budget. With the map function you can see which housing options are close to your host university, or in a part of town you'd like to live in.



Scan the QR code to download the Student.com app





### Academic matters

To participate in the GO LSE programme you are required to maintain the minimum average grade of 60% across all your courses at the end of your second year of study at LSE\*.

Your participation in the GO LSE programme and your studies at your host institution will not contribute to the final classification and award of your LSE degree\*\*.

Although the grades you achieve whilst studying abroad won't count toward your LSE degree it is important you maintain a good academic record. If you fail to meet the academic expectations of your host institution you risk being removed from the GO LSE programme. You should also bear in mind that grad schools and employers are likely to ask for a copy of your study abroad transcript.

#### **Academic progression requirement**

Students accepted to participate in the GO LSE study abroad programme must fulfil LSE's academic progression requirement before they are permitted to enrol at their host institution.

Students are required to pass a minimum of 7 out of 8 units attempted during the first and second years of study. Students are allowed three attempts to pass an assessment in year one and two attempts to pass an assessment in year two.

#### Failure to progress

Where a student fails to meet the academic progression requirement, they must resit the failed assessments, passing at least 7 out of 8 units, before they will be permitted to enrol at their host institution.

As study abroad can only be undertaken in the third year of an LSE degree programme, failure to progress in the second year will result in the student being ineligible to participate in the GO LSE programme.



<sup>\*</sup>This does not apply to students on Language Centre BSc programmes.

<sup>\*\*</sup>Unless you are a BSc Philosophy, Politics and Economics student who has been approved to undertake a year of study abroad as apart of your regular four-year degree programme.

### Enrolment at LSE whilst abroad

As a continuing LSE student, studying abroad at one of our partner institutions, you are required to re-enrol online with LSE for the 2025/26 academic year.

At the beginning of the academic year, you will receive an email from the LSE Student Services Centre (from email address ssc.do-not-reply@lse.ac.uk) with instructions on how to complete the LSE online enrolment.

During the online re-enrolment process it is important that you:

- Check (and update if necessary) your address, emergency contact information and the monitoring information that you provided when you applied to study at LSE.
- **2.** Confirm your acceptance of the Conditions of Registration and Enrolment. These may have been updated since you originally accepted your offer.

You should ensure that you re-enrol as early as possible. You should only re-enrol online if you have arrived at your host institution, registered and are attending at the partner university.

By completing the online re-enrolment, you are confirming that you have arrived and are attending at the partner institution, and as such, are continuing your degree programme with LSE.

Once you have re-enrolled online, you will have full access to online teaching resources for this academic year.

If you have any issues during the enrolment process please contact the **LSE Student Service Centre**.

## Support from LSE whilst you are overseas

### During your time studying abroad you will remain registered at LSE.

In addition to the staff at your host institution, the **GO LSE team** will be here to help you throughout your time overseas, signposting you to the most appropriate services to provide the support you need.

Whilst overseas you will continue to have remote access to a wide range of the School's student services, including:

- Accommodation
- Disability and Mental Health Service
- Faith Centre
- Financial Support
- LSE Careers
- LSE LIFE
- Student Counselling Service
- Student Wellbeing Service
- Students' Union Advice Service



## Returning to LSE

In September 2026 you will return to LSE to complete the final year of your degree studies.

After a year away, and with many of your former classmates having graduated, returning to LSE may feel a little strange. The GO LSE team will be on hand to deliver 'Welcome back' and re-orientation activities, designed to smooth your transition back into the LSE community.

You will be sent details of these activities toward the end of your time at your host institution.





- BUTEX: https://butex.ac.uk/
- Disability and Mental Health Service: <a href="https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/student-wellbeing/disability-wellbeing/disability-and-wellbeing-service">https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/student-wellbeing/disability-wellbeing/disability-and-wellbeing-service</a>
- Faith Centre: https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/Faith-Centre
- Financial Support: <a href="https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/financial-support">https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/financial-support</a>
- Foreign Travel Advice: https://www.gov.uk/foreign-travel-advice
- GO LSE: https://www.lse.ac.uk/study-at-lse/study-abroad/go-lse/outbound/Outbound-Students
- HM Passport Office: https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/hm-passport-office
- LSE Careers: https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/careers
- LSE Tuition Fees Policy: <a href="https://info.lse.ac.uk/staff/divisions/Finance-Division/Fees-Income-and-Credit-Control/Debt-and-Credit-Management">https://info.lse.ac.uk/staff/divisions/Finance-Division/Fees-Income-and-Credit-Control/Debt-and-Credit-Management</a>
- LSE Health and Safety team: https://info.lse.ac.uk/staff/divisions/Risk-and-Compliance-Unit/Health-and-Safety
- LSE LIFE: https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/lse-life
- Student Awards Agency Scotland: <a href="https://www.saas.gov.uk/">https://www.saas.gov.uk/</a>
- Student Counselling Service: https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/student-wellbeing/student-counselling
- Student Finance England: https://www.gov.uk/student-finance
- Student Finance Wales: https://www.studentfinancewales.co.uk/
- Student Wellbeing Service: https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/student-wellbeing
- Students' Union Advice Service: https://www.lsesu.com/support/advice/
- The Turing Scheme: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/turing-scheme-international-placements-2025-to-2026/overview-of-the-turing-scheme-2025-to-2026">https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/turing-scheme-international-placements-2025-to-2026/overview-of-the-turing-scheme-2025-to-2026</a>
- Student Loans Company: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/student-loans-company">https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/student-loans-company</a>
- Financial Support Office: <a href="https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/financial-support/student-support-lse-access">https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/financial-support/student-support-lse-access</a>
- LSE Student Hardship Fund: https://www.lsesu.com/support/funding/hardship/
- GHIC & EHIC card: <a href="https://www.nhs.uk/using-the-nhs/healthcare-abroad/apply-for-a-free-uk-global-health-insurance-card-ghic/">https://www.nhs.uk/using-the-nhs/healthcare-abroad/apply-for-a-free-uk-global-health-insurance-card-ghic/</a>



#### **GO LSE**

Student Recruitment and Study Abroad
The London School of Economics and Political Science
Houghton Street
London
WC2A 2AE

+44 (0) 20 7955 6860

Email: ard.outbound@lse.ac.uk

Including photography by:

Ketut Subiyanto Vlada Karpovich, Andrea Piacquadio, Ben Mack, Buro Millenial, Keira Burton, Ketut Subiyanto, Omar López and Marcelo Martins from pexels.com